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       1                         P R O C E E D I N G S

       2                 (Transcript follows in sequence from

       3       Volume 1.)

       4                     CONTINUED CROSS EXAMINATION

       5       BY MR. HAGA:

       6            Q.    Mr. Gates, we were about to address Issue 41,

       7       and Issue 41 relates to customer transfers.  And one of

       8       the areas in dispute between the parties is what's

       9       called LNP, right, Local Number Portability?

      10            A.   Yes, that's correct.

      11            Q.   Okay.  And Bright House has proposed language

      12       for the interconnection agreement providing that there

      13       would not be any charges between the parties for any

      14       LNP-related services or functions that they might

      15       provide to each other, correct?

      16            A.   Well, Bright House has put that language into

      17       these two pages that we proposed.  But to be clear,

      18       that's what the FCC orders, the LNP implementation, the

      19       LNP cost reconsideration order, that's what they say.

      20       Unless you are buying UNEs or you're doing resale, then

      21       there is no charges between and among carriers for LNP

      22       activities.

      23            Q.   So no charges for the LNP itself, and then you

      24       mentioned a couple of exceptions there for -- let's see,

      25       what are they?  Purchasing switching ports as UNEs, for
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       1       example?

       2            A.   Yes.  Are we in my testimony somewhere, Mr.

       3       Haga?

       4            Q.   Well, I was trying to pick up on what you just

       5       said, but I didn't quite hear the words, so I was

       6       referring back to your testimony.

       7            A.   Yes.  There were two exceptions, I believe,

       8       perhaps three in the FCC's orders.  One was for UNEs,

       9       people that buy UNE loops, and another one for resale.

      10       In those situations, you are able to charge -- oh, and

      11       the number query charge, if querying does occur.  Those

      12       are the only, I believe, three circumstances where LECs

      13       may charge one another for LNP activities.

      14            Q.   Okay.  And so there is those three exceptions

      15       that you just mentioned, and you're correct, they were

      16       mentioned in your rebuttal testimony, too, on Page 14.

      17       And then you also, in your rebuttal testimony, you

      18       mentioned another exception, and this is on Page 18, and

      19       this is for expedites, correct?

      20            A.   Well, to be clear, Bright House isn't

      21       proposing that they get expedites for free.  Bright

      22       House is willing to pay for expedites.

      23            Q.   Right.  And that was my only point is that

      24       Bright House has understood and agreed that they would

      25       pay for expedites of ports?
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       1            A.   Yes.  And although that is an LNP activity, I

       2       think it's outside the understanding from the FCC rules

       3       and from the Act.  So it's appropriate to pay for

       4       expedites.

       5            Q.   And just so we're sort of clear on the LNP

       6       process, most LNP requests are handled in an automated

       7       fashion, right?

       8            A.   Through an EDI or a GUI interface, generally

       9       it's automated as opposed to making a phone call or

      10       sending a fax, is that what you mean?

      11            Q.   Yes.

      12            A.   Yes.

      13            Q.   And in some cases there's human involvement,

      14       though, correct, and that's what the parties are

      15       referring to as coordination?

      16            A.   Yes.  Sometimes orders will fall out for some

      17       reason, or they are very unique, we have many, many

      18       lines involved, or perhaps the customer has a very

      19       sensitive service that we need to make sure that there

      20       is no interruption, so coordination occurs, and that's

      21       pretty common.

      22            Q.   Okay.  Well, you say it's pretty common, but

      23       most ports don't require coordination, do they?

      24            A.   Well, not if it's -- well, I don't know.  I

      25       had a very difficult time porting my number in one
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       1       situation and required a lot of coordination.  I have

       2       also had problems where I have had to call this

       3       Commission and get help from the consumer division.

       4                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Mr. Gates, can I just

       5       ask you, is that a yes or a no?  I'm trying to figure

       6       out the answer.  And I don't want to be rude, I just

       7       don't know what your answer was to that.

       8                 THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry, I should have

       9       answered yes or no and then asked if it was okay to

      10       explain.  I think my answer is no, they are not all

      11       simple.  Sometimes there are exceptions, but the vast

      12       majority of ports go off without a hitch, and they are

      13       automated.

      14       BY MR. HAGA:

      15            Q.   Okay.  And not to hide the ball, Mr. Gates, I

      16       was just look at your testimony here at Page 15 of your

      17       rebuttal at Line 8 where you said that coordination was

      18       not required for most ports, and is that consistent with

      19       your understanding here today?

      20            A.   Yes.

      21            Q.   Okay.  And that coordination, that involvement

      22       above and beyond the automated process, that's what is

      23       at dispute here between the parties, and Verizon says

      24       they should be paid for coordination and Bright House

      25       says no, they shouldn't, right?
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       1            A.   Basically, that's correct.

       2            Q.   Okay.  Let's shift gears, again, Mr. Gates,

       3       and talk about Issue 13.  And, again, just to orient us

       4       in a general sense, Issue 13 concerns the time limits in

       5       which the parties would backbill each other or dispute

       6       bills that they received from each other, correct?

       7            A.   Yes.

       8            Q.   And, Mr. Gates, do you know whether Bright

       9       House ever back bills?

      10            A.   I would have to defer that to Ms. Johnson.

      11            Q.   Okay.  Fair enough.

      12            A.   I imagine backbilling occurs, but I don't know

      13       to what extent.

      14            Q.   Well, generally speaking, then, there are

      15       legitimate reasons why a bill might be delayed for some

      16       amount of time after a service is rendered, right?

      17            A.   There might be some legitimate reasons.

      18       Usually it's a human error, a system error, or just poor

      19       software, but there might be some legitimate reasons,

      20       yes.

      21            Q.   In other words, not just mistakes.  There

      22       might be cases where they were delayed for some

      23       particular reason?

      24            A.   Yes.  Perhaps they wanted to add a feature,

      25       for instance, and that might be a reason to do that.
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       1            Q.   Okay.  And in this case, under the parties'

       2       current agreement, the time limit for backbilling or

       3       disputing bills from the other party, that's set by the

       4       state statute of limitations, right?

       5            A.   I believe it is, yes.

       6            Q.   Okay.  And Bright House has proposed -- rather

       7       than a statute of limitations, Bright House has proposed

       8       a one-year limit, correct?

       9            A.   Yes, that's correct.

      10            Q.   And the Commission has already addressed this

      11       issue in another arbitration proceeding, hasn't it?

      12                 MR. SAVAGE:  I may have to interpose a legal

      13       conclusion objection.  I mean, the Commission has ruled

      14       what it has ruled.  You can ask if he is aware of the

      15       Commission rulings.

      16                 MR. HAGA:  And that objection is well taken.

      17                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Can you rephrase?

      18                 MR. HAGA:  Yes.

      19       BY MR. HAGA:

      20            Q.   Mr. Gates, are you aware of whether the

      21       Commission has already addressed this issue in another

      22       arbitration proceeding?

      23            A.   Are you referring to the Covad?

      24            Q.   I am.

      25            A.   Yes, I addressed that in my testimony.
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       1            Q.   And in that arbitration the Commission held

       2       that the appropriate limit was the statute -- well, let

       3       me rephrase.  Excuse me.

       4                 Are you aware in that arbitration of whether

       5       the Commission held that the appropriate limit was the

       6       statute of limitation and not a one-year period?

       7            A.   Yes, I think that's true, and I think that

       8       order was issued seven years ago.  And the systems today

       9       are much, much better.  And I think Verizon's own

      10       witnesses have agreed that this proposal would benefit

      11       Verizon much more than Bright House.

      12            Q.   Well, Verizon's witnesses or Verizon's hasn't

      13       signed off on this proposal, though, have they?

      14            A.   No, but that's what your witnesses said, so

      15       hopefully we can resolve this.

      16            Q.   Well, I'm sure your Counsel can take that up

      17       with our witnesses.  But as the state of play is,

      18       Verizon's position is the statute of limitations,

      19       correct?

      20            A.   Yes, that's correct.

      21                 MR. HAGA:  Okay.  I have nothing further at

      22       this time.

      23                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.

      24                 Mr. Savage.

      25                 MR. SAVAGE:  Should I do my redirect before
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       1       any other questions or is that --

       2                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Let me ask

       3       Commissioners.  Any questions?  Later?  Okay.

       4                 Staff.

       5                 Mr. Savage, go ahead.

       6                         REDIRECT EXAMINATION

       7       BY MR. SAVAGE:

       8            Q.   Mr. Gates, in -- well, just maybe do it in

       9       reverse order.

      10                 With respect to the one-year cut off on

      11       backbilling and bill protests -- first, do you have an

      12       understanding of whether that would apply to both

      13       parties equally or only to one party?

      14            A.   It would apply to both parties equally.

      15            Q.   So is there any reason to think either party

      16       would be particularly advantaged or disadvantaged by

      17       moving to a shorter cut off?

      18            A.   Well, we have the deposition testimony of the

      19       Verizon witnesses that says that Verizon would benefit

      20       more.  But since it applies to both carriers, I mean, to

      21       the extent there is a benefit, it would accrue to both.

      22       I mean, it eliminates uncertainty.  It provides more

      23       certainty in the business relationship.

      24            Q.   All right.  I will spare you questions about

      25       the statute of limitation and its meaning and
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       1       legislative purpose, and move back to Local Number

       2       Portability.

       3                 Could you briefly summarize what you

       4       understand Bright House's proposal to be with respect to

       5       the coordination of large number ports?

       6            A.   Yes.  I think we've referred to large number

       7       ports as complex number ports where there may be some

       8       very unique circumstances that require the two companies

       9       to talk, perhaps physically as opposed to just

      10       exchanging e-mails or data.  So in those situations, and

      11       in situations, perhaps, where there are a large number

      12       of lines involved, perhaps hundreds, maybe more, or

      13       unique circumstances with respect to those lines, in

      14       those situations coordination must occur.  And the

      15       purpose of the coordination is it's really a consumer

      16       protection issue.  I mean, Local Number Portability is

      17       one of the most important things we can have today to

      18       encourage consumers to exercise their right to choose a

      19       new carrier.

      20                 But if LNP fails, if that process fails, and I

      21       have been subject to this personally, it's very

      22       frustrating for consumers.  And it kind of sours your

      23       opinion of your new provider if they can't get your

      24       number to you quickly and on time and accurately.  So

      25       coordination is a common activity that parties engage
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       1       in.  It is part of Local Number Portability for complex

       2       ports, and it's distinct from, for instance, expedites.

       3            Q.   And with respect to Bright House's proposal

       4       regarding coordination, do you understand that to apply

       5       only to Verizon providing coordination to Bright House,

       6       or would this also apply both ways, as you understand

       7       it?

       8            A.   This would apply both ways.

       9            Q.   So if, for example, Verizon were to win or

      10       win back a large business customer or a hospital that

      11       had a critical need to have their numbers ported

      12       properly, what would you understand Bright House to

      13       provide to Verizon and at what charge, if our proposal

      14       were to be adopted?

      15            A.   Should Bright House lose a large customer such

      16       as a hospital, or a college campus, or some customer

      17       like that, Bright House would cooperate with Verizon

      18       under these terms and assist and coordinate with Verizon

      19       in transferring those numbers from that customer to

      20       Verizon.

      21            Q.   And as you understand Bright House's proposal,

      22       would Bright House charge Verizon anything for that?

      23            A.   No, there would be no charge.

      24            Q.   Okay.  Now, moving back to Issue Number 37,

      25       which as we discussed it -- as you discussed with
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       1       Mr. Haga, it relates to the local calling area and

       2       intercarrier compensation.  Do you recall that Mr. Haga

       3       asked you whether different CLECs who might adopt this

       4       agreement might have a variety of different calling

       5       plans?

       6            A.   Yes.

       7            Q.   And let's assume for purposes of this

       8       discussion that indeed other CLECs with different local

       9       calling plans do adopt this proposal if it were to be

      10       approved, do you understand what I'm asking you to

      11       assume?

      12            A.   I do.

      13            Q.   Would that be a problem?

      14            A.   No, I think it's the correct solution, and I

      15       think it's consistent with what this Commission has

      16       ordered in the past, trying to coordinate the actual

      17       intercarrier compensation with the type of call that's

      18       being made.  I think it's absolutely appropriate.  It

      19       reduces costs, for instance.  I mean, if it really is a

      20       local call from Bright House, why should Bright House

      21       have to pay these high switched access charges on that

      22       call.  I mean, clearly it shouldn't.  So I think tying

      23       the intercarrier compensation with the type of call,

      24       whether it's local or toll makes good sense, and in this

      25       case reduces costs, truly, to Bright House because now
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       1       no longer will Verizon be able to charge access charges

       2       on local calls, which was inappropriate all along, but

       3       it agreed to in the past.  This is one of those tune-up

       4       issues that we are trying to fix.

       5            Q.   Would this proposal cause any substantial

       6       administrative or billing problems for Verizon?

       7            A.   No, not at all.  For instance, all calls in

       8       the LATA in Tampa from Bright House are local calls.

       9       So, I mean, any call from Bright House is local, and

      10       that's not difficult to handle administratively.  A

      11       person could do that at a desk, and certainly the switch

      12       generics and billing tables can handle that sort of

      13       situation.

      14            Q.   But what about if lots of different CLECs

      15       adopt it and they have different calling plans, wouldn't

      16       that put Verizon in a difficult billing situation?

      17            A.   No.  I mean, that's what we do every day.

      18       That's why we spent so much money on these billing

      19       systems is to make them efficient and correct, and

      20       that's not a problem at all.

      21            Q.   Okay.  So let's now go back to Issues 24 and

      22       36, looking at the chart.  Now, do you have a little

      23       copy of the chart with you?

      24            A.   I do not.

      25            Q.   If I may approach, I'll give him my little
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       1       copy.

       2            A.   Thank you.

       3            Q.   Then to go over here, the dispute that we were

       4       talking about has to do with let's just call it for now

       5       the treatment of these facilities that run from the

       6       Verizon tandem switch to the collocation at Verizon end

       7       offices, is that what you understood?

       8            A.   Yes.

       9            Q.   Okay.  Let's first deal with the scenario in

      10       which the meet point, for purposes of this meet point

      11       billing, is deemed to still be at the tandem and that

      12       doesn't change, okay.  So let's assume for the moment

      13       the meet point for picking up this traffic is still at

      14       the tandem.  Are you with me so far?

      15            A.   Yes.  So the current situation?

      16            Q.   The current physical situation.

      17            A.   Yes.

      18            Q.   And if that physical situation remains the

      19       same, what is it that Bright House wants with respect to

      20       the pricing of those facilities?

      21            A.   Those interconnection facilities should be

      22       priced at TELRIC and not at the tariffed special access

      23       rates.

      24            Q.   And are you familiar, generally, with the

      25       terms of -- I know you mentioned in your testimony
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       1       Section 251(c)(2) of the Act?

       2            A.   Yes.

       3            Q.   And, generally speaking, what does that

       4       section of the Act say, what does it require?

       5            A.   251(c)(2) -- and I have this on Page 69 of my

       6       direct -- if the Commissioners would like to read it

       7       there, but 251(c)(2) specifically deals with

       8       interconnection rights and responsibilities.

       9            Q.   And what does it say with respect to the

      10       location at which a CLEC may require an ILEC to

      11       interconnect?

      12            A.   It says in 251(c)(2)(b) that they can

      13       interconnect at any technically feasible point.

      14            Q.   And as far as you understand it, there is no

      15       claim on anybody's part that it is not technically

      16       feasible to interconnect at that tandem switch to

      17       interexchange this traffic.

      18            A.   No, nobody has made that claim.

      19            Q.   Now, what are the kinds of traffic to which

      20       that interconnection right applies under Section

      21       251(c)(2)?

      22            A.   251(c)(2)(a) says, and this refers

      23       specifically to facilities and equipment, but there it

      24       says for the transmission and routing of telephone

      25       exchange service and exchange access.
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       1            Q.   And do you have an understanding, based on

       2       your years in the industry, of what exchange access is?

       3            A.   Yes.

       4            Q.   What is that understanding?

       5            A.   Exchange access, and I think I provided these

       6       definitions in my testimony, but exchange access is

       7       switched access that we pay for toll calls.  That's

       8       exactly what it is.  I don't think there's any different

       9       definition of exchange access.

      10            Q.   So the traffic that we are talking about here,

      11       let's take it on an in-bound leg, comes from the IXC,

      12       goes to the Verizon tandem, and then hits these

      13       facilities.  In your judgment, would that or would that

      14       not be exchange access traffic?

      15            A.   That is the very definition of exchange access

      16       traffic.

      17            Q.   Okay.  So can you see any reason why the

      18       Section 251(c)(2) interconnection rights and terms and

      19       conditions would not apply to this traffic?

      20            A.   No, none.

      21            Q.   And with respect to the rating -- we can stop

      22       there.

      23                 Let's now look at the other scenario that is

      24       being talked about.  The other scenario that is being

      25       talked about would be to say let's not declare this
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       1       point at the tandem switch to be the point of

       2       interconnection for purposes of this traffic.  Let's

       3       say, instead, that the point is down here at Verizon's

       4       end office collocations.  Do you understand that

       5       separate scenario?

       6            A.   Yes.

       7            Q.   Okay.  Looking at the Section 251(c)(2) stuff

       8       we just discussed, it would still be change access

       9       traffic?

      10            A.   It would.

      11            Q.   Okay.  And are you aware of any contention or

      12       any reason why it wouldn't be technically feasible to

      13       exchange the traffic here at the collocation rather than

      14       here at the tandem?

      15            A.   No, it would be technically feasible.  And,

      16       you know, all the equipment is basically the same.

      17       There is no reason why it couldn't be done there.

      18            Q.   Okay.  So if it's done there, if Bright House

      19       were to say the technically feasible point at which I

      20       want to interconnect to exchange this traffic is here,

      21       under that scenario would Bright House still be charged

      22       by Verizon for these facilities if the interconnection

      23       point is down at the end office?

      24            A.   No, because it's on the Verizon side now of

      25       the interconnection point.  That is their
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       1       responsibility.  By that I mean Verizon.

       2            Q.   Okay.  So if Bright House were to say we are

       3       going to interconnect here now under the rules, then

       4       Verizon wouldn't charge Bright House for this.  Would

       5       Bright House charge anybody for the use of those

       6       facilities?

       7            A.   Yes, it would charge the interexchange carrier

       8       for the use of those facilities.

       9            Q.   Now, I believe you talked with Mr. Haga a

      10       little bit about the MECAB or MECOD documents that

      11       discuss the general rule that when you are establishing

      12       a meet point billing arrangement the two carriers simply

      13       have to agree on a point.  Do you recall that?

      14            A.   Yes.

      15            Q.   How do you square that with Section 251(c)(2)

      16       that says that the CLEC gets to pick the point?  What's

      17       the relationship between those two?

      18            A.   Well, clearly the CLEC gets to pick the point

      19       of interconnection.  The purpose of the MECAB and MECOD

      20       documents is to select a point for developing billing

      21       percentages or allocating costs and revenues.  That's

      22       the point of the MECOD and MECAB documents.  And they're

      23       not the same, a very different approach.  It's simply to

      24       coordinate and to ensure accurate and verifiable bills

      25       for these two carriers that are cooperating and
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       1       providing this facility for the exchange of this meet

       2       point traffic.

       3            Q.   And as you understand the Commission's role in

       4       this proceeding, would it be more accurate to say that

       5       its job is to enforce the literal terms of the MECOD and

       6       MECAB industry documents or Section 251(c)(2)?

       7            A.   Well, certainly for purposes of this dispute,

       8       251(c)(2) is why we are here.  ATIS and the OBF and

       9       these other industry organizations developed these other

      10       guidelines which the carriers do use, which is

      11       important, but clearly we're talking about 251(c)(2)

      12       here in terms of interconnection rights.

      13            Q.   And then one final point on this.  You were

      14       asked a little bit about a reference in your testimony

      15       to a settlement between the parties with respect to

      16       certain charging for existing facilities arrangements.

      17       Were you involved in the negotiation or drafting of that

      18       settlement?

      19            A.   No, I was not.

      20            Q.   And do you have an understanding as to the

      21       particular charges and facilities to which the

      22       settlement applies?

      23            A.   Yes.

      24            Q.   What is that understanding as you have it

      25       today?
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       1            A.   I understand that the settlement applies only

       2       to the multiplexing charges that Bright House is paying

       3       today on the Verizon side of the point of

       4       interconnection.  It does not address any other

       5       facilities or activities.  It's simply that muxing, and

       6       it assumes that the current arrangement of the networks,

       7       as Mr. Savage was just describing up there, it assumes

       8       it stays the same.

       9                 So if Bright House were to change the point of

      10       interconnection, then, you know, we would have some

      11       other issues, as well.  But the settlement assumes, one,

      12       just muxing; and, two, that the current facilities stay

      13       where they are today.

      14            Q.   So just to be clear, as you understand it, do

      15       you have any reason to think that in suggesting that the

      16       facilities that run from the access tandem to the end

      17       office could appropriately be priced at TELRIC rather

      18       than at tariffed rates, do you have any understanding as

      19       to whether that contention would be consistent or

      20       inconsistent with the settlement agreement?

      21            A.   I think it's -- I think that's very important

      22       for Bright House.  Bright House needs to know how that

      23       is going be priced in order to determine how it's going

      24       to reconfigure, if at all, its network.  But the

      25       settlement is absolutely consistent with the TELRIC
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       1       principles because that multiplexing, but for, you know,

       2       the age-old technology that Verizon is using, those DS-1

       3       ports on its switch, but for those the multiplexing

       4       would never occur.

       5                 So in the TELRIC study that this Commission is

       6       very familiar with you would never include those costs.

       7       There would never be any rates for multiplexing because

       8       an efficient provider wouldn't have to do that.

       9                 MR. SAVAGE:  I have nothing further.  Thank

      10       you.

      11                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Commissioner Skop.

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

      13       Just some brief questions.

      14                 Good morning, Mr. Gates.

      15                 THE WITNESS:  Good morning.

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  The chart that has been

      17       placed up before us, I don't know if you have a smaller

      18       chart before you.

      19                 THE WITNESS:  I do.

      20                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  The three collocation

      21       squares that you see on that chart --

      22                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Those were selected by

      24       Bright House merely for redundancy, is that correct, and

      25       do not represent the meet points?
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       1                 THE WITNESS:  The collo at the tandem, at the

       2       top there is where the meet point is today.  The collos

       3       were selected, the locations were selected by Bright

       4       House, yes.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  But with respect to

       6       the pricing dispute that exists regarding the meet point

       7       at the tandem switch, I guess -- let's go one-by-one on

       8       the collos just so I better understand this.  The collo

       9       that's located at the tandem office is a connection

      10       between the two tandems switches, is that correct?

      11                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, evidently.  Commissioner,

      12       this is the first time I have seen this today, and I

      13       didn't know there were two tandem switches at that

      14       Verizon tandem office, which is what this appears to

      15       show.  I didn't know that.  But there is one Bright

      16       House collo, and I'm not sure how that interfaces with

      17       what appears to be two tandems.

      18                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Just what I'm

      19       trying to establish, on Page 36 of your rebuttal

      20       testimony you talk about redundancy and the manner in

      21       which they've collocated their facilities to provide

      22       that redundancy --

      23                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.

      24                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  -- but at issue seems to

      25       be the selection of the meet point between the two
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       1       carriers, Bright House and Verizon.  And I think that as

       2       was just explained with respect to the meet point

       3       connection from the tandem switch to the VZ end office,

       4       that meet point currently exists at the tandem switch?

       5                 THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  So with respect to

       7       the use of the access toll connecting trunk, which I

       8       think is the dark line, to connect from the meet point

       9       to the collo at the end office, I guess Bright House is

      10       suggesting the TELRIC rate is the appropriate charge,

      11       whereas Verizon is stating that, no, that that charge

      12       should be special access facility charge, is that

      13       generally correct?

      14                 THE WITNESS:  Generally correct, yes.

      15                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  With respect to Bright

      16       House's contention and interpretation under the Act,

      17       does Bright House have any precedent that they can cite

      18       to that would suggest as to why the TELRIC

      19       interpretation is correct over and above that what

      20       Verizon is asserting, which seems to be the traditional

      21       view?

      22                 THE WITNESS:  Well, I disagree that it's the

      23       traditional view.  This is a unique case, and I will

      24       admit that, because Bright House -- here we're talking

      25       about Bright House putting more points of
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       1       interconnection in its network, whereas most CLECs are

       2       trying to get fewer.  But, no, I don't agree that it is

       3       the traditional view.  I think it is clear that Bright

       4       House can pick the point of interconnection, and if it

       5       did put the point of interconnection at the end office

       6       there, Commissioner, at those two end offices, then the

       7       traditional view would be that Verizon would be

       8       responsible for that network on their side of the POI,

       9       correct?  So that's one option for Bright House.  Or

      10       Bright House could keep the point of interconnection at

      11       the tandem where it is today, but recognizing that these

      12       are interconnection facilities between that collo and

      13       the end offices, reprice those to be TELRIC.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  But by selection of

      15       the meet point has not, in fact, Bright House chosen or

      16       elected to use the access toll connecting trunks that

      17       are the dark lines there?

      18                 THE WITNESS:  It has.  But that's -- and that

      19       is not an issue, those are going to say the same, right?

      20                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Right.

      21                 THE WITNESS:  All we are talking about now is

      22       pricing.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Well, not if Bright House

      24       were to establish the meet point at the end office, then

      25       the pricing would not be at issue, right?
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       1                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, that's correct.  Well, I

       2       think from Verizon's perspective it would because now

       3       they would receive only monies from the IXCs for those

       4       facilities, because it would be on their side of the

       5       POI.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  But from the

       7       existing configuration, Bright House has selected a meet

       8       point, but by virtue of wanting to access the access

       9       toll connecting trunks, I guess Bright House is

      10       asserting that the character is one of that of an

      11       interconnection rather than utilization of the special

      12       access facility, right?

      13                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Again, I started my

      15       question with asking whether Bright House could cite to

      16       some specific precedent where, you know, this pricing

      17       model has been adopted in another jurisdiction, or in

      18       another jurisdiction or either by this Commission or

      19       someone else, because it does -- I mean, would you --

      20       I'm trying to figure out how to say this.

      21                 Would the Bright House proposal alter the way

      22       in which CLECs compensate ILECs for these facilities if

      23       your proposal is adopted by the Commission?  I think you

      24       said this was a unique situation, so I just wanted to

      25       get your perspective.
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       1                 THE WITNESS:  Well, it's unique because Bright

       2       House is actually putting in more points of

       3       interconnection, so they're trying to get more diversity

       4       and redundancy into their network.  It's not unique in

       5       that CLECs have always been able to choose the point of

       6       interconnection.  I mean, that's just a right under

       7       251(c)(2).

       8                 The real dispute here is over if we keep that

       9       point of interconnection where it is, those facilities

      10       from that tandem down to that end office, I mean we

      11       could call those entrance facilities, which is what

      12       Verizon likes to characterize them as, and, of course,

      13       that's because of the impairment argument.  But, again,

      14       Bright House is not using these facilities to connect to

      15       UNEs, okay?  That would be 251(c)(3).  We are using --

      16       Bright House is using these for interconnection only,

      17       that's 251(c)(2).  And it said in the TRRO at Paragraph

      18       140 that for purposes of interconnection these

      19       facilities shall be available to CLECs at cost-based

      20       rates, which is TELRIC rates.

      21                 Now, we can -- I'm sure the lawyers will brief

      22       all of that for you, but that is absolutely consistent

      23       with industry practice and the FCC's rules.  I think

      24       what you are struggling with and kind of what we are all

      25       kind of struggling with in this case is that Bright
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       1       House is different.  Bright House has built its own

       2       network.  Bright House doesn't buy UNEs.  It doesn't

       3       resell.  It's basically self-sufficient other than this,

       4       you know, industry need to interconnect all of these

       5       networks.  So the question is, you know, do they pay

       6       TELRIC?  Yes, they do, because that's what the TRRO

       7       said.

       8                 If you are buying a UNE, then, no, you don't

       9       get TELRIC rates, you pay the tariffed special access

      10       rates.  But if you are using this facility for

      11       interconnection, at Paragraph 140 it says they are to be

      12       cost-based rates because they always have been.

      13                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  But just to my point, you

      14       can't cite any specific precedent where somebody has

      15       ruled in favor of Bright House's position on this, is

      16       that correct?

      17                 THE WITNESS:  I'm not sure.  Bright House

      18       hasn't done many of these, I don't believe, but I'm not

      19       aware of any, so I guess I'll defer to the attorneys to

      20       do that for us.

      21                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And then, Madam

      22       Chair, just one final question.

      23                 With respect to the use of the access toll

      24       connecting trunk, obviously Bright House gets to choose

      25       the meet point.  If Bright House does not like the price
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       1       offering for use of the Verizon facility, being the

       2       access toll connecting trunk, then why would Bright

       3       House not merely just change the meet point to the end

       4       office?

       5                 THE WITNESS:  I think that's an option for

       6       Bright House.  They can pick that point as you pointed

       7       out.  Are you suggesting that if they don't like -- I

       8       guess your point is if they don't like the tariffed

       9       special access that they are paying today, can they just

      10       move that point to the end office?

      11                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  And not pay it?

      12                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.

      13                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.

      14                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.  And that is a viable

      15       recommendation.

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.

      17                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Staff.

      18                 MS. BROOKS:  Staff does not believe that Mr.

      19       Savage has moved the testimony into the record, and we

      20       want to inquire now if he was going to go ahead and do

      21       that?

      22                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Mr. Savage?

      23                 MR. SAVAGE:  If everyone is done, at this

      24       point I, indeed, would like to move into the record

      25       Mr. Gates' Direct and Rebuttal Testimony.
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       1                 MS. BROOKS:  Thank you.

       2                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.

       3                 Commissioners.  I think we are done.  Thank

       4       you, Mr. Gates, you can go.

       5                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

       6                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  And we'll move on to Ms.

       7       Johnson.  Exhibits, yes, thank you.

       8                 Mr. Savage.

       9                 MR. SAVAGE:  I had understood that the

      10       exhibits to the testimony actually were stipulated in,

      11       so it was only the testimony itself that needed to be

      12       moved.

      13                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Yes.  No, no, no, that's

      14       not correct.

      15                 MR. SAVAGE:  Oh, that's not correct.  Okay.

      16                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  We were going to wait

      17       for his testimony, and then Ms. Helton --

      18                 MS. HELTON:  (Inaudible; microphone off.) --

      19       when the witness first came up to the stand.  Normally

      20       our language is we insert the testimony into the record

      21       as though read, and I think he may have said we would

      22       like you to adopt, so I think that might be part of

      23       where the confusion is.

      24                 MR. SAVAGE:  Then if I may substitute for all

      25       those erroneous motions, first that we agree that we
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       1       will insert into the record as if read the Direct and

       2       Rebuttal Testimony of Mr. Gates, and move into evidence

       3       the various exhibits listed in the composite exhibit

       4       list for Mr. Gates.

       5                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.  We've got it

       6       now.  Thank you.

       7                 MR. SAVAGE:  I apologize.

       8                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Show that done.

       9                 MS. HELTON:  And so I take it, Madam Chairman,

      10       if there are no objections then you could go ahead and

      11       move into the record the exhibits.

      12                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Are there any

      13       objections?  I am seeing none.  Then we are fine, yes.

      14                 (Exhibit 15 through 21 admitted into

      15       evidence.)

      16                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Anything else?  Okay.

      17       Okay, Mr. Savage.

      18                           MARVA B. JOHNSON

      19       was called as a witness on behalf of Verizon, and having

      20       been duly sworn, testified as follows:

      21                         DIRECT EXAMINATION

      22       BY MR. SAVAGE:

      23            Q.   Good morning, Ms. Johnson.

      24            A.   Good morning.

      25
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       1            Q.   Could you please state your name, position,

       2       and business address for the record.

       3            A.   My name is Marva Johnson.  My title is

       4       Vice-President for Technology, Policy, and Industry

       5       Affairs, and my business address is 301 East Pine

       6       Street, Suite 600, Orlando, Florida 32801.

       7                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Might I just say what I

       8       plan to do so we don't -- let's try not to cut off a

       9       witness in the middle of testimony.  About 12:30,

      10       Commissioners, head to lunch for an hour, and then come

      11       back.  And if we can just be succinct with our questions

      12       and answers that might help in the effort to not have to

      13       break up the testimony.  Thank you.

      14       BY MR. SAVAGE:

      15            Q.   Ms. Johnson, did you cause to be prepared and

      16       filed the Direct Testimony of Marva Johnson on

      17       March 26th, and then the Rebuttal Testimony of Marva

      18       Johnson on April 16th, 2010?

      19            A.   Yes, I did.

      20            Q.   And do you have any corrections, or additions,

      21       or amendments you'd like to make to your testimony at

      22       this time?

      23            A.   None at this time.

      24            Q.   And if I were to ask you the questions

      25       contained in your written Direct Testimony and written
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       1       Rebuttal Testimony today, would your answers be the

       2       same?

       3            A.   Yes, they would.

       4            Q.   And I don't believe you had any exhibits to

       5       your testimony, so at this time if you could give a

       6       brief summary of your testimony, we'd appreciate it.

       7            A.   Great.  I first would like to thank each of

       8       the Commissioners for giving us an opportunity to share

       9       our thoughts here with you today.  I think that there's

      10       a bit of misconception in that some of the requests that

      11       we have made may seem novel or coy, but I assure you

      12       that they are real and they are serious and they are

      13       specific.

      14                 I have worked in the industry in many

      15       different roles and I have seen many of these issues

      16       from different angles.  I've worked for an IXC, I've

      17       worked for an ILEC, I've worked for a couple of CLECs at

      18       this point in my career.  The thing that is consistent,

      19       regardless of the perspective that I've approached some

      20       of these issues from is that first and foremost

      21       facilities-based competition is pretty much the only

      22       meaningful way to compete and win and serve customers

      23       while in this marketplace.

      24                 The second is that the interconnection

      25       agreement is the lifeline of our business.  We cannot
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       1       successfully provide high quality service to customers

       2       consistently without the benefit of an interconnection

       3       agreement that clearly and specifically addresses the

       4       terms and conditions under which we co-exist here in the

       5       market.

       6                 The one thing that's most important to us is

       7       that we have certainty, that we have a binding

       8       agreement.  When we go back to our offices on Thursday,

       9       I won't have the benefit of having Mr. Savage sit with

      10       my engineers to place service orders, nor will I have

      11       the benefit of having Mrs. Keating or Mrs. Frappier sit

      12       with my billing people to review invoices.  What we will

      13       have is real employees who are trained engineers,

      14       trained accountants, trained billing analysts, not

      15       experts in telephony law or telecommunications law.

      16                 As such, this agreement is -- it's an MMP for

      17       them, it's their method and procedure.  It is the way

      18       that they understanding that we do business.  It is the

      19       way that they understand that we procure customers from

      20       Verizon, that we lose customers to Verizon, that we

      21       route traffic, that we apply the rating and routing

      22       provisions.  So it is essential that we get this right,

      23       and it's essential that we have clarity.  So for Bright

      24       House it's the number one reason we are here.

      25                 My testimony is here, and I offer it primarily
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       1       as it relates to Issue Number 7, and that's essentially

       2       the fact that we need a binding agreement.  The Telecom

       3       Act doesn't contemplate that we will have an agreement,

       4       that we invest to build collocations to support, that we

       5       build-out fiber to support, that we arrange our OSS to

       6       support, and then suddenly Verizon can turn away from

       7       those things at the drop of a hat, or based on a

       8       unilateral decision they have made and decide no longer

       9       to provide those things.  The sole purpose of being here

      10       is to have a binding agreement.  So any provision,

      11       absent a change in law provision, which we've already

      12       agreed to that subordinates our binding provisions is

      13       unacceptable.

      14                 And the second primary focus for my testimony

      15       is to talk about the definition of local traffic.  One

      16       of the greatest benefits of competition is to drive down

      17       costs for consumers and to deliver higher quality

      18       services.  The way that we rate calls between our

      19       networks is essential to our ability to continue to

      20       compete and to continue to provide high quality service

      21       and to continue to do so at a low rate.

      22                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.

      23                 (REPORTER NOTE: For the convenience of the

      24       record, Witness Johnson's prefiled testimonies inserted

      25       in the transcript.)
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       1                 MR. SAVAGE:  With that, Ms. Johnson is

       2       available for cross-examination.

       3                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Mr. O'Roark.

       4                 MR. O'ROARK:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

       5                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       6       BY MR. O'ROARK:

       7            Q.   Good morning, Ms. Johnson.  I'm De O'Roark.  I

       8       represent Verizon, and we've met before.

       9            A.   Good morning.

      10            Q.   Ms. Johnson, you are Vice-President of

      11       Technology, Policy, and Industry Affairs with Bright

      12       House Networks LLC, is that right?

      13            A.   That is correct.

      14            Q.   And that's the company that provides retail

      15       cable, broadband, and VoIP phone service?

      16            A.   We are -- Bright House Networks LLC is an

      17       interconnected Voice-over IP provider, correct, and they

      18       provide other services in addition to being an

      19       interconnected VoIP provider.

      20            Q.   Do those other services include broadband and

      21       cable?

      22            A.   They do.

      23            Q.   If I refer to your company as Bright House

      24       Cable, you'll understand what I'm referring to?

      25            A.   I would.
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       1            Q.   Bright House Cable is not regulated by the

       2       PSC, correct?

       3                 MR. SAVAGE:  I think I need to object to that

       4       specifically as calling for a legal conclusion.

       5       BY MR. O'ROARK

       6            Q.   Are you aware --

       7                 MR. O'ROARK:  I'll accept the objection.

       8            Q.   -- are you aware, Ms. Johnson, of whether

       9       Bright House Cable is regulated by the PSC?

      10            A.   It's my understanding that interconnected VoIP

      11       services are not regulated by the PSC.

      12            Q.   The same true for broadband and cable, right?

      13            A.   Correct.

      14            Q.   And Bright House Cable provides service in

      15       Verizon's service territory and the service territory of

      16       five other ILECs, is that right?

      17            A.   That is correct.

      18            Q.   And if I understand it correctly, Bright House

      19       has more of its service area in Verizon's service

      20       territory than in any other ILEC service territory?

      21            A.   It's marginally more, marginally.

      22            Q.   When did Bright House Cable start offering

      23       VoIP phone service in Florida?

      24            A.   Bright House Cable began operating as an

      25       interconnected VoIP provider around 2003.
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       1                 MR. O'ROARK:  Madam Chair, I'd like to pass

       2       out an exhibit that I have placed in red folders because

       3       it includes confidential information.

       4                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  We have staff to

       5       come and grab that from you, and that is confidential

       6       information.

       7                 MR. O'ROARK:  Madam Chair, I would request

       8       that we mark this exhibit as Exhibit 23.

       9                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Twenty-three.  Do we

      10       have that?

      11                 (Exhibit Number 23 marked for identification.)

      12       BY MR. O'ROARK:

      13            Q.   Ms. Johnson, do you have before you now what

      14       has been marked as Exhibit 23?  I see you're reviewing

      15       it.  Please let me know when you have had a chance to

      16       take a look at it.  And as you are, let me just explain

      17       as I have to your counsel already that Exhibit 23 is a

      18       composite.  It shows Bright House's response to

      19       Verizon's First Interrogatory Number 1, Verizon's

      20       response to First Interrogatory Number 3, and it also

      21       includes one page from Verizon Witness Munsell's Direct

      22       Testimony, specifically Page 5 of that testimony.  Each

      23       of these three pages includes confidential information.

      24                 And, Ms. Johnson, as you are looking at it, I

      25       will tell you that I'm not going to ask you to say any
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       1       of the confidential numbers out loud.

       2                 MS. HELTON:  Madam Chairman, I'm sorry, to

       3       that note, I just want to make sure that I understand

       4       what is not confidential.  You know, our typical

       5       practice is we would have highlighted as yellow the

       6       confidential information, and I see some information

       7       shaded on Page 5 with the word processing program, but I

       8       don't really see anything else highlighted.  So is it

       9       all confidential?  And the only reason I'm asking, Mr.

      10       O'Roark, is I just want to make sure that we don't

      11       unintentionally --

      12                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Mr. O'Roark, is it just

      13       the numbers on Page 1 and 2, and the shaded area on 3,

      14       or could you be more specific?

      15                 MR. O'ROARK:  I'm sorry, Madam Chair.  That is

      16       correct.  And, actually, if you look, the numbers on the

      17       first two-page are shaded, it is just they have been

      18       copied so many times it's light.  But we'd be happy to

      19       work with staff to make sure that the correct

      20       information is redacted.

      21                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  So then all the numbers

      22       on Page 1 and 2 are considered confidential, and the

      23       shaded areas on what's labeled Page 5 at the end is also

      24       confidential.

      25                 MR. O'ROARK:  That's correct.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

       2                 MR. SAVAGE:  Madam Chairman, if it would help,

       3       I have actually gone ahead and yellow highlighted one if

       4       it would help to give to the staff in the network.

       5                 MS. HELTON:  I just wanted to make sure for

       6       purposes of the record that we all were on the same page

       7       with respect to what's confidential and what's not

       8       confidential.

       9                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.  Proceed.

      10       BY MR. O'ROARK

      11            Q.   Ms. Johnson, have you had a chance to take a

      12       look at what has been marked as Exhibit 23?

      13            A.   Yes.

      14            Q.   And response to Interrogatory Number 1, which

      15       is on the first page, accurately reflects the number of

      16       residential customers that Bright House had at year-end

      17       2007, 2008, and 2009 in Bright House's Florida service

      18       territory?

      19            A.   Correct.

      20            Q.   And then if you'll flip to the second page,

      21       please.  Bright House's response to Interrogatory Number

      22       3 reflects a rough approximation of the number of

      23       residential customers at year-end 2007, 2008, and 2009

      24       in Verizon's territory, is that correct?

      25            A.   That is correct.
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       1            Q.   Now, let me show you the final page, or let me

       2       ask you to take a look at it.  And remember, please,

       3       that this is from Mr. Munsell's testimony.  You can see

       4       that the first highlighted portion refers to the number

       5       of Bright House customers, and that number simply picks

       6       up on Bright House's response to Interrogatory Number 1,

       7       correct?

       8            A.   Correct.

       9            Q.   And then you will see that Mr. Munsell

      10       provides some Verizon-specific information about its

      11       residential customers.  And, obviously, I wouldn't

      12       expect you to have independent information about those

      13       figures, but I gather that as a Bright House Cable

      14       Vice-President you pay close attention to the Tampa Bay

      15       market, is that true?

      16            A.   It's fairly significant to us.

      17            Q.   And the relative positions of Bright House and

      18       Verizon reported by Mr. Munsell are consistent with your

      19       general understanding of the Florida market, is that

      20       fair?

      21                 MR. SAVAGE:  Are you asking about the Florida

      22       market or the Tampa Bay market?

      23                 MR. O'ROARK:  The Tampa Bay market where

      24       Verizon and Bright House are providing service.

      25                 THE WITNESS:  Do you mind repeating the full
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       1       question?  Sorry.

       2                 MR. O'ROARK:  Yes.

       3       BY MR. O'ROARK:

       4            Q.   Really, all I'm asking is based on your

       5       knowledge of the Tampa Bay market, is that consistent

       6       with the relative positions of Bright House and Verizon

       7       that are reported by Mr. Munsell generally?

       8            A.   I don't have direct knowledge of Verizon's

       9       subscriber counts.  I would note that it actually

      10       surprised me.  It probably doesn't account for wireless,

      11       nor does it -- I'm not even sure if it accounts for FiOS

      12       and it definitely doesn't account for business, but the

      13       number surprised me a little bit.

      14            Q.   Let me take a step back, Ms. Johnson.  You

      15       used to work for KMC at one point, didn't you?

      16            A.   I did.

      17            Q.   When was that?

      18            A.   2000 through 2005.

      19            Q.   Was KMC a facilities-based provider?

      20            A.   KMC was a facilities-based provider, however

      21       we still used -- in order to win business customers it

      22       was important for us to have a ubiquitous footprint, so

      23       we often used ILEC UNE facilities either temporarily

      24       until we could justify a build or permanently if it

      25       didn't -- if a bill didn't prove itself out in an IRR.
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       1            Q.   But KMC also had its own facilities?

       2            A.   It did.

       3            Q.   Now, let's talk about the Bright House CLEC

       4       for a minute.  It's the Bright House CLEC that you are

       5       testifying on behalf of in this case?

       6            A.   It is.

       7            Q.   That's Bright House Network Information

       8       Services Florida LLC?

       9            A.   That is correct.

      10            Q.   Now, all traffic from Bright House Cable goes

      11       to the Bright House CLEC, is that right?

      12            A.   Yes.  We provide interconnected VoIP services

      13       to our cable affiliate, correct.

      14            Q.   And the Bright House CLEC -- excuse me.  The

      15       Bright House CLEC only handles traffic going to or from

      16       Bright House Cable customers?

      17            A.   That is true at this point in time.

      18            Q.   The Bright House CLEC interconnects with

      19       Verizon and other carriers, true?

      20            A.   That is true.

      21            Q.   And it directly interconnects with multiple

      22       IXCs?

      23            A.   That is true.

      24            Q.   Do you have in front of you the late-filed

      25       exhibit to your deposition?  If you don't, I can give it
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       1       to you.

       2            A.   I believe I do.  Give me a quick sec.

       3            Q.   And for the record, this is part of Exhibit

       4       10, which is already in the record.  It is the

       5       late-filed exhibit to Ms. Johnson's deposition.  And if

       6       it will help, Ms. Johnson, I do have a copy right here.

       7            A.   Actually I might be quicker.  I put mine right

       8       on top.  Thank you.

       9            Q.   Do you have your late-filed exhibit in front

      10       of you, Ms. Johnson?

      11            A.   I do.  Thank you.

      12            Q.   Certainly.  And Late-filed Exhibit MBJ-1

      13       purports to show approximate monthly minutes exchanged

      14       between Bright House and Verizon, correct?

      15            A.   That's correct.

      16            Q.   And let's start with the information under the

      17       heading Bright House to Verizon.  So this would be

      18       traffic that was originated by Bright House such as when

      19       a Bright House customer picks up the phone to make a

      20       call, is that right?

      21            A.   That's correct.

      22            Q.   Okay.  And if I understand it right you have

      23       shown about 34 million minutes that are either local or

      24       intraLATA toll.  I'm sorry, about 34 million minutes

      25       that are local.  Is that right?
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       1            A.   That's correct.

       2            Q.   And then 2.6 million that are intraLATA toll?

       3            A.   That is also correct.

       4            Q.   And then a little under 4 million for local

       5       transit.

       6            A.   Correct.

       7            Q.   Now, you don't show here any originating

       8       traffic to IXCs, is that true?

       9            A.   It's true that we don't show it.  We had

      10       difficulty pulling together the numbers to create the

      11       late-filed exhibit, and I didn't have those numbers

      12       available at that time.

      13            Q.   So as you sit here right now you don't know

      14       what that number of minutes would be?

      15            A.   That is correct.

      16            Q.   But it is some positive number, it's not zero?

      17            A.   Yes, it's not zero.

      18            Q.   And in response to Staff's Interrogatory

      19       Number 22A, Bright House had said that there were

      20       350 million minutes being exchanged between the parties.

      21       All told here you have got substantially less than that.

      22       Is that because there was an error before or does that

      23       just reflect the fact that you haven't captured all the

      24       minutes in your chart?

      25            A.   I think it may be that the first was an
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       1       estimate, and to your second point, we haven't captured

       2       all the minutes here.

       3            Q.   So if I understand correctly, let's take the

       4       situation where a Bright House caller makes a long

       5       distance call, and it's not an 800 number, it's a

       6       regular long distance call.  If Bright House is not

       7       interconnected with the IXC, then Bright House might

       8       send that originating traffic through the Verizon

       9       tandem, is that true?

      10            A.   That is correct.

      11            Q.   And then you have the example of an 800 call

      12       where the called party is the one who designates the

      13       IXC, and if that IXC isn't directly interconnected with

      14       Bright House, then that call might also go through the

      15       Verizon tandem, is that true?

      16            A.   That is correct.

      17            Q.   Now, I gather that a Bright House customer can

      18       use the IXC of its choice if it wants to?

      19            A.   That's correct.  We support PIC choices.

      20       However, because our service is bundled, most people

      21       find it more effective to purchase a service and use it

      22       as bundled.

      23            Q.   If the Bright House customer selects its own

      24       IXC, does it pay Bright House less for the telephone

      25       service?
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       1            A.   No, it's a package.

       2            Q.   I'm sorry.

       3            A.   I should also clarify that package includes a

       4       number of other services that are not offered for free

       5       through other carriers, so it includes things like Easy

       6       Gadget (phonetic), which is a web portal that provides

       7       access to enhanced services.  You can access your call

       8       detail records.  You can program your phone and do other

       9       things from your remote desktop.  So it's hard for us to

      10       unbundle it and to reallocate, so we sell it as a

      11       package.

      12            Q.   And just so I'm clear, then, if the customer

      13       says, you know what, it's really important for me to

      14       have a certain IXC, you will accommodate that request,

      15       but you are not going to lower the price?

      16            A.   That's correct.  It's a package price.

      17            Q.   Ms. Johnson, let me ask you now to turn to the

      18       revised interrogatory responses that you recently

      19       provided to Verizon to Number 32, 32A, 38A, and 38C,

      20       which is already part of Exhibit 4.  And I have an extra

      21       copy of that, too, if that would be helpful to you.

      22            A.   This is easier.  I'll take it.  Thank you.

      23            Q.   Ms. Johnson, do you have the revised responses

      24       in front of you?

      25            A.   I do.
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       1            Q.   And these responses were prepared under your

       2       direction?

       3            A.   They were.

       4            Q.   And you attested to their accuracy?

       5            A.   To the best of my knowledge, I did.

       6            Q.   Let me ask you to turn to the response to 38A,

       7       and just let me know when you are there, please.

       8            A.   I'm there.

       9            Q.   And the response to 38A identifies five other

      10       ILECs in addition to Verizon with which Bright House

      11       interconnects in Florida, is that right?

      12            A.   That is correct.

      13            Q.   Now, let me ask you to turn to the next page,

      14       the response to 38C.  For each of these other five ILECs

      15       Bright House buys special access facilities to carry

      16       traffic from Bright House's network to the ILEC's tandem

      17       switch, is that right?

      18            A.   That's correct.

      19            Q.   So, in other words, with the other five ILECs

      20       that you interconnect with in Florida you have a similar

      21       kind of arrangement that you have with Verizon with what

      22       Verizon calls the access toll connecting trunks, is that

      23       right?

      24            A.   That is correct.

      25            Q.   Now, Ms. Johnson, is it true that Bright House
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       1       recently sent an order to disconnect several DS-1 access

       2       toll connecting trunks?  Do you know?

       3            A.   I'm not directly aware of the orders, but I am

       4       generally familiar with the fact that we are going

       5       through network optimization opportunities and they

       6       probably looked at some opportunities within Verizon's

       7       footprint.

       8            Q.   Does that have anything to do with a network

       9       reconfiguration relating to this case?

      10            A.   I'm not sure if it has anything to do directly

      11       with the network reconfiguration relating to this case.

      12       It probably has more to do with our engineers looking at

      13       the network, its efficiency, and our needs given the

      14       current traffic volumes.

      15            Q.   Let's talk about multiplexing for a minute or

      16       two.  You're generally familiar with the layout of

      17       Bright House's network?

      18            A.   Yes.

      19            Q.   And as I think we've already heard today,

      20       Bright House has collocations in two Verizon end offices

      21       and at the Verizon tandem office?

      22            A.   Yes.

      23            Q.   Does Bright House bring traffic from its

      24       switch to the collocations at the DS-3 level?

      25            A.   It may be DS-3 or higher, but I'm pretty sure
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       1       it's at least a DS-3.

       2            Q.   And just so everyone is clear, a DS-1 can

       3       carry up to 24 voice grade trunks, right?

       4            A.   Correct.

       5            Q.   And a DS-3 can carrier up to 28 DS-1s?

       6            A.   Correct.

       7            Q.   Now, from each of the three Bright House

       8       collocations that have been established, there is direct

       9       end office trunking to Verizon end offices, is that

      10       true?

      11            A.   That's my understanding, correct.

      12            Q.   And the acronym in the industry for Direct End

      13       Office Trunking is DEOT?

      14            A.   Absolutely.

      15            Q.   And maybe just so it is clear to

      16       Commissioners, you have seen the diagram that we have

      17       been using which shows two Verizon end offices.  In

      18       fact, there are more than two in the network, correct?

      19            A.   That is my understanding.

      20            Q.   Does about 85 all told sound about right?

      21            A.   I'm going to take your word for that.

      22            Q.   Well, I think that's about right.  Let's go

      23       with that.

      24            A.   Let's go with it.

      25            Q.   So you've got the collocations at the tandem
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       1       and the two end offices, and from there Bright House is

       2       able to reach the other end offices in the Verizon

       3       network through this direct end office trunking, is that

       4       fair?

       5            A.   That's fair.  We're able to exchange traffic

       6       between our networks at all points in your network and

       7       mine.

       8            Q.   And as I mentioned in the opening, the way

       9       Bright House has the network set up is all of these

      10       collocations are on a fiber ring, correct?

      11            A.   Correct.

      12            Q.   And so that if you've got traffic going to a

      13       particular end office through one of your collocations

      14       and the DEOT fills up, to use a nontechnical term, the

      15       traffic can then flow to another collocation and go over

      16       another DEOT to that same end office, is that correct?

      17            A.   Yes.  I think, though, that we would have a

      18       disagreement with regard to your network diagram with

      19       regard to how the redundancy is established.  I believe

      20       that they are each two separate rings so that they are

      21       distinct.  There's not a ring between the two

      22       collocations, if that makes sense.  It gets passed back

      23       through another hub and then it would go from our

      24       network to the other collo or through the tandem, even.

      25            Q.   So with that qualification, though, am I
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       1       correct that if a DEOT from one collo fills up, then

       2       Bright House's network is configured so that the traffic

       3       can then overflow over another DEOT from another

       4       collocation?

       5            A.   We've definitely designed a network to allow

       6       for overflow routing and also for redundancy to the

       7       extent that one of our rings is cut.  We just abhor

       8       dropped calls, so our objective is to make sure that our

       9       network will deliver a call pretty much consistently

      10       with some multiple of 9's after that.

      11            Q.   Now, Issue 32 in our case concerns whether

      12       Bright House may require Verizon to accept trunking from

      13       Bright House at the DS-3 level.  Is that your

      14       understanding?

      15            A.   That is correct.

      16            Q.   And as a practical matter what is really at

      17       stake in Issue 32 is who's going to bear the

      18       responsibility for multiplexing that DS-3 traffic.

      19                 MR. SAVAGE:  I think that actually assumes

      20       facts not in evidence having to do with -- if I see

      21       where you're going, what your switches are or might be

      22       capable of.

      23       BY MR. O'ROARK:

      24            Q.   But do you have an understanding, subject to

      25       that objection, Ms. Johnson?  Are we as a practical
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       1       matter and sort of business-to-business is the issue

       2       that we have been talking about who pays for the

       3       multiplexing?

       4            A.   Actually, as a practical matter the way we see

       5       it is what is the most efficient way to route the

       6       traffic between our networks.  As you can imagine,

       7       muxing and demuxing traffic, converting it from IP to

       8       TDM, the points of failure upon -- or the points at

       9       which you route it through in a network, all of that

      10       causes some impact to the call service and to the call

      11       delivery.  So if you have a more efficient handoff we

      12       believe it enhances call quality.  So we don't think

      13       it's just about who pays, we also think it's about the

      14       efficiency of the network, which in our minds manifests

      15       itself in the call quality.

      16            Q.   Now, this Issue 32 has been settled for the

      17       parties' current arrangement for network interconnection

      18       as long as those physical arrangements remain materially

      19       unchanged, is that right?

      20            A.   Yes.  As long as we don't change our network

      21       we believe that we've reached terms and conditions which

      22       have settled the issue as it relates to the current

      23       arrangement.

      24            Q.   And if you know, the change would have to be a

      25       material physical change in the network, is that right?
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       1            A.   I don't recall the exact language, but subject

       2       to check I'm willing to accept your representation.

       3            Q.   And Bright House has not made any specific

       4       written proposal to Verizon for a materially changed

       5       interconnection arrangement, has it?

       6            A.   Well, as noted, our engineers right now are

       7       looking at optimizing the network.  And so what they are

       8       challenged with is understanding how different physical

       9       arrangements would create certain costs for us or how

      10       different physical arrangements would reduce certain

      11       costs.  And so without knowing the outcome, you know, I

      12       can't project out what their proposals would cost us

      13       without knowing the outcome of some of the issues at

      14       play here in the context of this arbitration.  So

      15       they're waiting for me to give them some comfort and

      16       direction.

      17            Q.   But is the answer to my question, yes, that

      18       Bright House has not made such a specific proposal to

      19       Verizon?

      20            A.   If you don't mind, I'd like to just tweak it

      21       and say we are unable to make such a proposal because it

      22       is unclear to us how those proposals would impact our

      23       cost basis.

      24            Q.   But for whatever reason, Bright House has not

      25       actually done that?
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       1            A.   That's correct, we have not, because we don't

       2       have sufficient information to make a decision with at

       3       this point.

       4            Q.   Ms. Johnson, do you know whether Bright House

       5       has its own multiplexers in its collocation cages?

       6            A.   We do.

       7            Q.   You do.  Do you have multiplexers in each one?

       8            A.   I believe that we do.  I would imagine so.  I

       9       know we at least have them at the collo that I visited.

      10            Q.   Is that based on information that you learned

      11       since your deposition?

      12            A.   No, I think -- I believe that I reviewed it

      13       prior to my deposition.  I can't recall in time.

      14            Q.   What is the capacity of the multiplexers that

      15       you have in your collocation?

      16            A.   Could you define what you -- could you tell me

      17       what you mean by capacity?

      18            Q.   Let's take a step back.  What kind of

      19       multiplexers are they, 3-to-1 for example?

      20            A.   I believe they are -- I'm not sure.  I'm not

      21       sure specifically what type of multiplexers they are.  I

      22       know that we use the multiplexers that we put in to

      23       convert from -- we have an all fiber network, so we

      24       convert from optical to electrical.  When we do so, we

      25       mux down.  We demux in order to get it down to a speed
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       1       that an electrical interface will accept.

       2            Q.   Do you know whether those multiplexers are

       3       capable of sending traffic to Verizon at the DS-1 level?

       4            A.   I believe they could be configured to send

       5       traffic to Verizon at the DS-1 level.  The challenge

       6       there is we would need so many of those multiplexers in

       7       order to accommodate the volumes of traffic between our

       8       network.  It would require much more rack space in the

       9       collocation, and so it would, A, be an additional

      10       equipment burden, but it would also require that we take

      11       more space out of Verizon's collocation in order to

      12       house that equipment in.  So, again, it would be less

      13       efficient.

      14            Q.   Do you still have your revised responses in

      15       front of you?

      16            A.   I do.

      17            Q.   Can you please turn to the revised response to

      18       32A.  And let me know when you're there, please.

      19            A.   I'm there.

      20            Q.   This response shows the number of Verizon end

      21       offices to which Bright House sends at least five DS-1s,

      22       is that right?

      23            A.   That's correct.

      24            Q.   And according to Bright House, once you reach

      25       five or six DS-1s you would put them on a DS-3 circuit?

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                    417

       1            A.   That's our preference for a network efficiency

       2       perspective.

       3            Q.   In fact, as Bright House has configured its

       4       network today, these DS-1s are going to each end office

       5       from more than one Bright House collocation, isn't that

       6       true?

       7            A.   I believe that's true.

       8            Q.   So the number of DS-1s going from any given

       9       end office from any given collocation would be lower

      10       than the numbers reflected here?

      11            A.   I'm not certain of that.  The thing that this

      12       flat fixed count doesn't do is it doesn't account for

      13       busy hour engineering.  And as you know, engineers don't

      14       look at a network flat.  Engineers manage the network

      15       realtime.  So, you know, when American Idol is on and

      16       everybody is calling to vote on their favorite person,

      17       this traffic mix changes and the amount of traffic that

      18       our networks exchange may be different, or the amount of

      19       calls outbound may be different.

      20                 We provision, like I said, our network to

      21       ensure that calls will route and that they route to some

      22       degree of four 9s.  I would say that to the extent that

      23       we have got the position that at five or six DS-1s we

      24       would move to a DS-3, it's to ensure that calls never

      25       fail, that they route even during heavy call times.
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       1            Q.   Is the way that Bright House put this chart

       2       together by adding up the DS-1s from the collocations to

       3       each of these end offices?

       4            A.   That is correct.

       5            Q.   So, for example, the first one shows ten

       6       DS-1s, that means that from two or three collocations

       7       you've got ten DS-1s total, right?

       8            A.   Right.  For the Brandon, Florida, switch we

       9       have ten DS-1s going to that end office.

      10            Q.   From all the collocations combined?

      11            A.   Correct.

      12            Q.   And so from any one of those collocations the

      13       number of DS-1s going from the collocation to that end

      14       office is less than ten, right?

      15            A.   That I'm not certain of, Mr. O'Roark.

      16            Q.   Does Bright House have any plans to change its

      17       network configuration so that all of Bright House's

      18       local traffic will be routed through a single

      19       collocation?

      20            A.   Not at this time.  Routing all traffic through

      21       a single collocation doesn't meet our objectives for

      22       redundancy.  We have gotten four J.D. Power awards for

      23       VoIP, which is unusual as an incumbent -- as a

      24       competitor in this marketplace.  We believe it's because

      25       we place such high emphasis on the quality of service
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       1       that we provide to the customers, and so we believe that

       2       maintaining a network that has some redundancy in order

       3       to ensure that we can support customers at a very high

       4       quality service and delivery we would probably not ever

       5       go to one single collocation.

       6            Q.   Let's assume just purely hypothetically for a

       7       minute that for whatever reason Bright House did do

       8       that, went to a single collocation.  I realize you just

       9       said that you don't expect that Bright House will do

      10       that, but just for purposes of illustrating a point I'd

      11       like you to assume that just for a moment.  Can you do

      12       that?

      13            A.   I can.

      14            Q.   All right.  If you were to do that and you

      15       were to route all of this traffic to that collocation,

      16       you would expect that Bright House would route these

      17       DS-1s on high capacity facilities at least DS-3 and

      18       possibly higher, right?

      19            A.   Correct.

      20            Q.   In other words, you wouldn't have a DS-3 for

      21       the traffic going to each of these end offices being

      22       routed to your collo, that would be inefficient?

      23            A.   Right.  We would probably do an OC interface,

      24       maybe the OC-3.

      25            Q.   And, in fact, Bright House has other DS-1s for

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                    420

       1       traffic going to other end offices not reflected in this

       2       chart, is that correct?

       3            A.   Yes, we do, that's correct.

       4            Q.   So if this traffic is coming in on DS-3 or

       5       even higher capacity facilities, they're going to have

       6       to be multiplexed so that that traffic can be

       7       distributed to the 85 or so Verizon end offices, isn't

       8       that true, if under the hypothetical that they all came

       9       into the same collocation?

      10            A.   I would believe that within Verizon's network

      11       Verizon would demux that traffic in order to distribute

      12       it across the 85 end offices.

      13            Q.   One way or another that traffic is going to

      14       have to be multiplexed before it can be distributed,

      15       right?

      16            A.   I would assume so if Verizon doesn't change

      17       anything about its network.

      18                 MR. O'ROARK:  Thank you, Ms. Johnson.  That's

      19       all the questions I have.

      20                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

      21                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.

      22       Commissioners?  Commissioner Skop?

      23                 Staff.

      24                 MS. BROOKS:  Staff has no questions.

      25                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Commissioner Skop and
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       1       then Mr. Savage.

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

       3                 Just a brief question with respect to Issue 7.

       4       What basis, if any -- or actually, let me get you to

       5       explain your concern with Issue 7 first.

       6                 THE WITNESS:  We have established a network

       7       arrangement, good, bad, or indifferent, under which we

       8       operate within Verizon's footprint today.  We may make

       9       some changes to that network arrangement, depending on

      10       the outcome of this arbitration, but nonetheless it's

      11       something that is costly, and something that is

      12       essential in terms of being accurate in order for us to

      13       ensure our ability to deliver services going forward.

      14                 What concerns us is that we spent the time and

      15       effort, including this Commission's time, to discuss and

      16       propose terms and conditions under which we would

      17       operate those networks and interoperate our networks and

      18       transition customers, and that six months from now you

      19       could have us before you again asking you to resolve a

      20       dispute because Verizon has decided not subject to a

      21       change in law, but subject to their whim that something

      22       they are providing under the context of this very

      23       agreement that we are using the Commission's resources

      24       to decide today that they no longer want to provide.

      25       And that just doesn't seem reasonable to us.  It
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       1       certainly doesn't meet the standard required in terms of

       2       a binding agreement, nor does it give us the ability

       3       with certainty to serve our customers.

       4                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.

       5                 And just one follow up question to that.  To

       6       the extent that, you know, Bright House asserts that

       7       Verizon at some future point in time may cease

       8       performing duties that are provided for within the

       9       interconnection agreement, would not Bright House have

      10       various remedies, notwithstanding, you know, equitable

      11       relief to maintain the status quo while those disputes

      12       are being maintained so that Verizon could not just

      13       leave Bright House hanging?  If you could expand on

      14       that.

      15                 THE WITNESS:  I could certainly leave it to

      16       counsel to brief what those remedies are.  The concern

      17       is that what we are here to do today is decide those

      18       issues, and so if we are deciding today the best way to

      19       serve customers in Florida and the best way for two

      20       carriers to coexist and support services for consumers

      21       in Florida, it just seems inefficient and, you know,

      22       risky for us to walk away from a decision today and have

      23       either party -- Bright House wouldn't even want that

      24       provision to be applied on its behalf -- to have either

      25       party be able to put asunder all the efforts that we
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       1       have gone through here to agree with regard to the best

       2       way to provide service in the state of Florida.  So,

       3       yes, we may have remedies, but we shouldn't use the

       4       court's time to decide and redecide and overdecide and

       5       reevaluate and change our minds about issues that we are

       6       right here today, you know, to come to agreement on.

       7                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.

       8                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Mr. Savage.

       9                         REDIRECT EXAMINATION

      10       BY MR. SAVAGE:

      11            Q.   Do you still have in front of you what was

      12       marked, I think, as Number 23, which is the confidential

      13       exhibit with the numbers?

      14            A.   I do.

      15            Q.   Okay.  And I will try to do this without

      16       actually getting to any particular numbers, but take a

      17       look at the last page of that, which was number -- it

      18       was Page 5 from one of the Verizon witnesses' testimony.

      19            A.   Oh, the other confidential.  I do.

      20            Q.   Okay.  Now, on Line 10 there is a number that

      21       Verizon is purporting to be its approximate number of

      22       residential customers in Tampa.  Do you see that?

      23            A.   I do.

      24            Q.   Okay.  And then on Line 9 there's a number

      25       that is represented as our total number of home phone
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       1       customers at year-end 2009.  Do you see that?

       2            A.   I do.

       3            Q.   Okay.  And the dramatic impact of this, I

       4       guess, is that the Bright House number is a bigger

       5       number than the Verizon number, right?

       6            A.   Correct, but it's not apples-to-apples.

       7            Q.   Right, and that was my question.  Does the

       8       Bright House number that is bigger than the Verizon

       9       number, does that relate to the Tampa area only?

      10            A.   It doesn't.  It's all subscribers.

      11            Q.   So go back to the previous page.  It was our

      12       answer to Number 3 in this exhibit.  Go back one page.

      13       Are you there?

      14            A.   I'm actually on -- yes, the answer to Number

      15       3.

      16            Q.   The answer to Number 3.  And then over there

      17       at the far right there is a number which is our

      18       approximate number of Tampa area end users.  Do you see

      19       that?

      20            A.   I do.

      21            Q.   In Tampa, would you agree with me, again,

      22       without getting into the numbers, that Verizon has

      23       hundreds of thousand more customers than we do?

      24            A.   Verizon absolutely has hundreds of thousands

      25       more customers than we do.
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       1            Q.   So, in your view, would be it accurate to have

       2       there be any suggestion in the record that as regards

       3       the competition between Verizon and Bright House that

       4       Bright House is the bigger company?

       5            A.   That would be a misrepresentation.  We are

       6       clearly not the size of Verizon, not throughout the

       7       state of Florida nor within Verizon's footprint.

       8            Q.   Not to say we don't aspire to that.

       9            A.   Not to say I don't -- I'd love to be as big as

      10       Verizon someday and to have my own wireless network.

      11            Q.   Now if you could take a look -- and I think

      12       you had it in front of you -- the revised responses to

      13       the interrogatories.

      14            A.   Yes.

      15            Q.   Was that marked as an exhibit?  No, it's

      16       already part of the system.  Okay.  And look at Number

      17       38C that Mr. O'Roark asked you a bit about.

      18            A.   I'm there.

      19            Q.   And we were talking about whether and the

      20       extent to which Bright House has established a similar

      21       physical configuration for handling this meet point

      22       billing traffic with other ILECs.  Now, is Bright House

      23       presently renegotiating its interconnection agreements

      24       with any ILEC other than Verizon?

      25            A.   We are not.
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       1            Q.   And not meaning to bind you necessarily for

       2       the future, but sitting here today, do you have any

       3       reason to think that when Bright House gets around to

       4       renegotiating its interconnection agreements with other

       5       ILECs that it would take any different positions with

       6       them as compared to what it's taking with Verizon today?

       7            A.   Absolutely not.  In fact, if you don't mind,

       8       one of the great things is that we are allowed to adopt

       9       agreements to enter into a market.  As you provide

      10       service and interface with other carriers you learn more

      11       not only about their networks, but yours.  And so we

      12       would absolutely take different positions on similar

      13       issues in the same agreements.

      14            Q.   And that might be because the amount of

      15       traffic in one market may be different?

      16            A.   Well, we would take some positions similar to

      17       the ones taken with Verizon here in our replacement

      18       interconnection agreements with other carriers.  I would

      19       expect that -- I don't see any reason right that it

      20       would be any different from carrier to carrier.

      21            Q.   If I can have just a moment to check my notes

      22       here.  With respect to Issue Number 7 that Commissioner

      23       Skop was asking you about, Bright House Networks

      24       Information Services LLC, the petitioner in this case,

      25       is a competitive local exchange carrier, is that
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       1       correct?

       2            A.   That's absolutely correct.

       3            Q.   Now, do you understand Verizon to have fully

       4       and finally accepted Bright House as a CLEC with full

       5       CLEC rights on this record?

       6            A.   I don't know that I have a straight answer on

       7       that.  I would have to say no, I don't understand them

       8       to have clearly and absolutely have accepted that point

       9       for the duration of the agreement.

      10            Q.   And is Verizon's thus far either unwillingness

      11       or inability to take a stand on that issue, is that a

      12       source of concern to you as it relates to Section 50 of

      13       the contract in Issue Number 7?

      14            A.   It's very disconcerting.  It would undo

      15       everything that we sought to have created through this

      16       interconnection agreement in terms of certainty, and

      17       that of all the issues is the one that scares us

      18       probably the most if we don't get the right answer here

      19       because that would deny us the opportunity to operate as

      20       a CLEC as it relates to providing service to our

      21       interconnected VoIP affiliate.

      22            Q.   Now, are you familiar with a previous dispute

      23       that arose between Verizon and Bright House involving

      24       retention marketing?

      25            A.   I am.
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       1            Q.   And do you recall whether in that dispute

       2       which mainly took place before the FCC, whether Verizon

       3       tried to avoid liability by claiming that Bright House

       4       wasn't really a CLEC?

       5            A.   That is one of several disputes in which that

       6       issue has arose in that context.

       7            Q.   And does Bright House's history with Verizon

       8       with respect to this specific issue contribute to your

       9       concern with respect to Verizon's potential actions

      10       under its proposed Section 50?

      11            A.   It absolutely does.  In fact, to the extent

      12       that we are concerned about certainty it is because we

      13       have had interactions where we have been challenged and

      14       we believe that there is nothing to make us feel

      15       comfortable that we won't suffer similar interactions

      16       going forward unless we resolve it correctly here today.

      17            Q.   Now, just to be clear, does Bright House have

      18       any objection to including language in the agreement

      19       that requires the parties to negotiate in good faith if

      20       there is a material change in the law?

      21            A.   Oh, absolutely.  It's Section 50, I believe it

      22       is.  We have a change in law provision and it is very

      23       clean.  We agreed on it, and we think it should work,

      24       and it should work in any situation anticipated as

      25       drafted.
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       1            Q.   I think the record will reflect that

       2       Section 4.6 in 50 are the ones we're fighting about.

       3       Okay, that's great.

       4                 One last thing I would like to do, and I have

       5       struggled to find a hard copy, which I can't, of one of

       6       the attachments to Mr. Gates' testimony that I want

       7       moved into the record.  But this is focusing on this

       8       issue of DS-1 versus DS-3 trunking, and what I will do,

       9       if it's okay with you, is I will just read our proposed

      10       language for Section 2.4.6 of the interconnection

      11       attachment, which is where this exists.  I just want to

      12       focus on this language.

      13                 What I'm going to read to you is what this

      14       section would look like if Bright House's proposal were

      15       adopted, and then I'll ask you some questions about

      16       that.  It says, "Two-way interconnection trunks shall

      17       have SS7 common channel signaling.  The parties shall

      18       utilize at Bright House's option B8ZS and extended

      19       superframe ESF trunking at the DS-3 level or above

      20       (including OC3, OC12, or OC48 as traffic levels dictate)

      21       using Bright House's option of copper or fiber physical

      22       transport facilities for DS-3 level connections."

      23                 Did you follow all that?

      24            A.   I did.

      25            Q.   Now, I'd like to focus for a second on the
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       1       language that says that we'll use these higher level

       2       trunking as traffic levels dictate.  Now, based on your

       3       experience in the industry, is it possible that

       4       telecommunications engineers might have a reasonable

       5       disagreement about at precisely what traffic level it is

       6       appropriate to use higher level trunking?

       7            A.   They're generally consistent, but it is highly

       8       possible that they could have a disagreement.

       9            Q.   And in light of the language that refers to as

      10       traffic levels dictate here, do you understand Bright

      11       House to be proposing that it should be able to demand

      12       an OC48 interconnection if it only has three DS-1s worth

      13       of traffic?

      14            A.   Absolutely not.  In fact, that's the reason

      15       for the traffic level as the barometer, because that

      16       makes it an objective decision not a subjective one.

      17                 MR. SAVAGE:  I have nothing further.

      18                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Staff.

      19                 MS. BROOKS:  Staff has no questions.

      20                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Commissioners.  Okay.

      21       Any exhibits that we need to --

      22                 MR. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So at this time -- let me

      23       see if I get this right -- I'd like to move that the

      24       Direct and Rebuttal Testimony of Ms. Johnson be deemed

      25       included in the record as though read.
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       1                 MS. HELTON:  That works for me, Madam

       2       Chairman, if it works for you.

       3                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  I think it works for me,

       4       too.

       5                 MR. SAVAGE:  And then I believe it is true

       6       that Ms. Johnson didn't have any actual attachments to

       7       her testimony, so there is no need to move those in.

       8                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Right.  Mr. O'Roark.

       9                 MR. O'ROARK:  And, Madam Chair, we presented

      10       Exhibit 23 on cross-examination and we would move its

      11       admission in the record, please.

      12                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Exhibit 23.

      13                 (Exhibit Number 23 admitted into the record.)

      14                 MR. O'ROARK:  And I suppose the record should

      15       reflect that's a confidential exhibit.

      16                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  And the record to

      17       reflect that is confidential, yes.

      18                 MR. SAVAGE:  And, again, a procedural

      19       question.  I think every page of Exhibit 23 was

      20       independently in the record already, so I, of course,

      21       have no objection.

      22                 MR. O'ROARK:  Counsel is correct, Madam Chair.

      23       Because it was a composite, I thought it might be

      24       helpful for the record to have it as people kind of

      25       looked to see what the witness was asked about.

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                    432

       1                 MS. HELTON:  That's fine, I think, Madam

       2       Chairman, to have it marked separately, and it might

       3       actually be easier to work with that way.

       4                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  So it's done.  Thank

       5       you.

       6                 Thank you, Ms. Johnson.

       7                 MS. JOHNSON:  Thank you, again, for your time

       8       this afternoon.

       9                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  And if we can have staff

      10       collect the confidential folders.  And we will go to

      11       lunch and come back at 1:30.

      12                 (Lunch recess.)

      13                 (Transcript continues in sequence with

      14       Volume 3.)
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